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Appendix A:  Signed Resolutions 

 
Model Resolution 
 
Resolution # ______ Adopting the Region L Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Whereas, the (Name of Government/District/Organization seeking FEMA approval of hazard 
mitigation plan) recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to people and property within our 
community; and 
 
Whereas, undertaking hazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for harm to people and 
property from future hazard occurrences; and 
 
Whereas, the U.S. Congress passed the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (“Disaster Mitigation 
Act”) emphasizing the need for pre-disaster mitigation of potential hazards; 
 
Whereas, the Disaster Mitigation Act made available hazard mitigation grants to state and local 
governments; and 
 
Whereas, an adopted Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan is required as a condition of future funding 
for mitigation projects under multiple FEMA pre- and post-disaster mitigation grant programs; 
and 
 
Whereas, the (Name of Government/District/Organization) fully participated in the 
FEMAprescribed mitigation planning process to prepare this Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan; and 
 
Whereas, the Kansas Division of Emergency Management and the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency Region VII officials have reviewed the “Region L Multi-Hazard 
Mitigation Plan,” and approved it contingent upon this official adoption of the participating 
governing body; and 
 
Whereas, the (Name of Government/District/Organization) desires to comply with the 
requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act and to augment its emergency planning efforts by 
formally adopting the Region L Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan; and 
 
Whereas, adoption by the governing body for the (Name of Government/District/Organization) 
demonstrates the jurisdictions’ commitment to fulfilling the mitigation goals and objectives 
outlined in this Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 
Whereas, adoption of this legitimizes the plan and authorizes responsible agencies to carry out 
their responsibilities under the plan; 
 
Now, therefore, be it resolved, that the (Name of Government/District/Organization) adopts the 
“Region L-Hazard Mitigation Plan” as an official plan; and 
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Be it further resolved, the (Name of Government/District/Organization) will submit this 
Adoption Resolution to the Kansas Division of Emergency Management and Federal Emergency 
Management Agency Region VII officials to enable the plan’s final approval. 
 
Passed: ___________ 
 
__________ _______ 
 

Certifying Official 
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Appendix D:  References and Contacts 

• The following individuals were contacted in reference to the Region L Hazard Mitigation 
Plan.  Phone numbers are provided should verification be needed: 

• Steve Samuelson – Kansas Department of Agriculture – Contacted on CRS program, 
NFIP stats and program.  785-296-4622.  25 March 2013 – 16 July 2013. 

• Erika Stanley – Kansas Department of Agriculture Division of Water Resources.  
Contacted on maps, levees and ams.  785-296-2513.  22 April 2013 – 29 April 2013. 

• Michael McNulty – Director of Homeland Security Operations bureau of community 
Health systems Kansas Department of Health and Environment.  785-291-3065.  
Contacted on Major Disease Outbreak and statistics related to extreme temperature.  20 
March 2013 – 12 July 2013. 

• Jack Baines – Wyandotte County Deputy Appraiser.  913-573-8400.  Contacted for the 
Wyandotte County Abstract of Values.  10 June 2013 – 13 June 2013. 

• Jamie Schwartz – Environmental Scientist, KS Division of Emergency Management.  
785-274-1423.  Contacted about RMP by county. 

• Jennifer Clark – Technological Hazards and Critical Infrastructure Section Chief, KS 
Division of Emergency Management.  785-274-1394.  Contacted for hazardous material 
spills and incidents.  4 April 2013 – 18 July 2013. 

• Kimberly A. Hunninghake, Dam Safety Team Leader, Kansas Department of Agriculture, 
Division of Water Resources.  785-296-4625.  Contacted for Dam and Levee 
information.  13 March 2013. 

• Kent Schierkolk – Response/Restoration Unit Manager, Bureau of Environmental 
Remediation, KDHE.  785-368-7301.  Contacted for information of hazardous material 
spills and incidents.  8 April 2013 – 9 April 2013. 

• Kim Steves – KS Department of Health and Environment Radiation Control Program.  
785-296-4359.  Contacted for stats on radiological spills, accidents, etc. for the planning 
area.  25 March 2013 – 5 April 2013. 

• Brian T. Rast – Senior Planner and Senior Project Manager silver Jackets Coordinator, 
Kansas & Missouri, USACE.  816-389-3337.  April 2013 – 24 July 2013.  Levee’s and 
Dams information. 

• Chad Omitt – National Weather Service, Warning Coordination Meteorologist.  785-232-
1493.  Contacted in regards to various natural hazard climatology questions.  11 Dec 
2012 – on-going.   
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• Kari Valentine, Laurie Bestgren, Susan Belt - AMEC, Mitigation Planner’s.  785-272-
6878.  Contacted in regards to various data and stats in the State Mitigation Plan that 
directly affected Region L’s HMP.  Time period – on going. 

• Rob Ladner, Captain – KDWPT – Region 2 Office.  785-273-6740.  Environmental, 
endangered species, wildfire.  29 January 2013. 

• John W. Maddox – Freight and Rail Program Manager, Bureau of Transportation 
Planning, Kansas Department of Transportation.  785-296-3228.  Number of Kansas 
Regulated Pipeline Mileage.  5 Dec 2012. 

• Kim Gant – KS Historical Society.  29 Jan 2013 – 12 June 2013. 

• Jeremy Jackson – Director – Kansas Intelligence Fusion Center, 785-274-1805.  
Contacted in regards to cybersecurity, terrorism.  29 April 2013 – on-going. 

• Margaret Fast – Kansas Water Office.  785-296-0865.  1 February 2013.  Requested 
info on drought. 

• 2011 Kansas Crop Insurance Profile. Rep. USDA Risk Management Agency, n.d. Web. 
5 Mar. 2013. www.rma.usda.gov/pubs/2012/stateprofiles/kansas11.pdf. 

• Bureau of Reclamation. Managing Water in the West.  Dam Safety Public Protection 
Guidelines. www.usbr.gov/ssle/damsafety/documents/PPG201108.pdf 

• Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).  “Preparing for and Responding to 
Extreme Heat and Cold Events.”  www.cdc.gov/nceh/hsb/disaster/heatandcold.htm. 

• Department of Homeland Security.  Various.  www.FEMA.gov 

• EMCAPS.  Electronic Mass Casualty Assessment and Planning Scenario’s.  
www.hopkins-cepar.org/EMCAPS/EMCAPS.html 

• Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI).  www.fbi.gov/stats-services/publications/terrorism-
2002-2005 

• FEMA’s Policy and Claim Statistics for Flood Insurance.  www.fema.gov/policy-claim-
statistics-flood-insurance/policy-claim-statistics-flood-insurance/policy-claim-13 

• Johnson County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2009. 

• Kansas Adjutant General’s Department 

• Kansas Department of Health and Environment Bureau of Surveillance 
and Epidemiology.  www.kdheks.gov/epi/index.html. 

• Kansas Department of Agriculture, Division of Water Resources (KDS-DWR). 
www.ksda.gov/dwr. 
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• Kansas Department of Agriculture. Emerald Ash Borer Information. N.p., n.d. Web. 5 
Mar. 2013.  www.ksda.gov/plant_protection/content/379.>. 

• Kansas Department of Agriculture.  High and Significant Hazard Dams. 

• Kansas Department of Agriculture, Plant Protection and Weed Control Division, 2011,  
www.ksda.gov/includes/document_center/plant_protection/Insect_Survey_Reports/Insec
tReportN1V59.pdf. 

• Kansas Department of Corrections.  Inmate Populations. 
www.doc.ks.gov/publications/fiscal-year-2012-offender-population-report/view 

• Kansas Department of Health and Environment.  
www.kdheks.gov/environment/index.html 
 

• United States Department of Transportation, Pipeline & Hazardous Materials Safety 
Administration.  
primis.phmsa.dot.gov/comm/reports/safety/KS_detail1.html?nocache=3112#_OuterPane
l_tab_6 

 
• Kansas Department of Health and Environment.  “Subsurface Void Space 

and Sinkhole/Subsidence Area Inventory for the State of Kansas.”  2006. 

• Kansas Division of Emergency Management (KDEM).  Technological 
Hazards.  Primary Locations of Hazardous Materials Incidents. 

• Kansas Geological Survey, Earthquakes in Kansas.  
www.kgs.ku.edu/Publications/GeoRecord/2001/vol7.3/Page1.html 

• Kansas State Hazard Mitigation Plan 2013. 

• Kansas Historical Society.  National and State Registers.  www.kshs.org. 

• Kansas State Research and Extension, Climatic Maps of Kansas.  
http://www.ksre.ksu.edu/wdl/ClimaticMaps.htm 

• Kansas State University. “Forrest Action Plan.Revised  Web. 2011.  
www.kansasforests.org/documents/stateagency/Kansas_FRAS.pdf and 
www.kansasforests.org/assessment.shtml.   

• Kansas Water Office.  Drought/Climate Report.  
www.kwo.org/Reports%20&%20Publications/Drought/Tbl_drought_declarations_051107
_twl.pd and http://governor.ks.gov/kansasdrought-resources. 

• Leavenworth County Multi-jurisdictional Mitigation Plan, Jul 2010. 

• Local Mitigation Planning Handbook.  Federal Emergency Management Agency.  FEMA. 
Mar. 2013. Print.  
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• National Climatic Data Center.  Various.  
http://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/stormevents/choosedates.jsp?statefips=20%2CKANSAS 

• National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration.  Drought.  www.drought.gov/drought/. 

• National Weather Service (NWS).  Heat Index Chart.  
www.crh.noaa.gov/images/unr/preparedness/heatindex.pdf 

• NCAR, Climate and Global Dynamics Division.  Palmer Drought Index.   
www.cgd.ucar.edu/cas/catalog/climind/pdsi.html. 

• Pepitone, John. "Community Activist Calls for Stop to HS "Fight Club"" Fox4kccom. N.p., 
12 Nov. 2012. Web. 22 Jan. 2013. http://fox4kc.com/2012/11/12/community-activist-
calls-for-stop-to-hs-fight-club/. 

• Southern Poverty Law Center.  2012.  www.splcenter.org/what-we-do/hate-and-
extremism 

• "'So, You Live Behind a Levee!' New ASCE Guide Helps Communities Tackle Flood 
Protection, Risk Issues." American Society of Civil Engineers. N.p., n.d. Web. Jan.-Feb. 
2013. <http://content.asce.org/ASCELeveeGuide.html>. 

• Stanford University’s National Performance of Dams Program. http://ce-npdp-
serv2.stanford.edu/DamDirectory/DamIncidentQuery/IncidentForm.jsp 

• State of Kansas, K.S.A. 82a-301 et seq.  Definitin of a jurisdictional dam. 
http://damsafety.org/media/Documents/STATE_INFO/LAWS_&_REGS/Kansas_L&R.pdf 

• The Annual impact of seasonal influenza in the US: Measuring disease 
burden and costs, by Molinari et al. 

• Tornado Project.  www.tornadoproject.com. 

• United States Army Corps of Engineer, KC District.  
http://www.nwk.usace.army.mil/Portals/29/docs/emergencymanagement/leveerehab/200
9-LeveeRepairs-Status-MO.pdf 

 
• United States Army Corps of Engineers. National Levee Database.  

http://nld.usace.army.mil/egis/f?p=471:1:0::NO 

• United States Census Bureau.  Various.  2010.  www.census.gov. 
 

• USDA. Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service. Map. USDA, n.d. Web. 5 Mar. 2013.  
www.aphis.usda.gov/plant_health/plant_pest_info/emerald_ash_b/downloads/eab_quara
ntine_map.pdf . 

• USDA, 2007 Census of Agriculture.  www.agcensus.usda.gov. 
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• United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), RMPs, 
www.rtknet.org/rmp/ks.php. 

• United States Geological Survey, National Atlas of the United States.  
www.nationalatlas.gov. and Swelling Soils.  
http://arcvoid.com/surevoid_web/soil_maps/ks.html 

• United States Geological Survey.  PSHA Model.  
http://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/apps/ 

• Unites States of Homeland Security/FEMA, GIS Department. 

• Vaisala’s National Lightning Detection Network (NLDN).  Cloud to Ground Lightning 
Incidence in the Continental U.S. (1997-2010).  
http://www.vaisala.com/en/products/thunderstormandlightningdetectionsystems/Pages/N
LDN.aspx 

• Wyandotte County Multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan.  Jul 2010. 
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